
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

January 28, 2019 
6:00 PM 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplin 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. City Manager’s Report 
6. Councilors’ Reports 
7. Financial Reports – George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
8. Approval of Minutes – January 14, 2019 (Regular Meeting) 

Old Business 

9. Ordinance Number 2817 – Rezoning – 3791 Poe Drive; That Part Of Lot 1, Overton 
Village Resurvey Which Lies In The Vestavia Hills Corporate Limits; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) To VH R-9 (Planned Residential District); 
Overton Condos, LLC, Mark Perlman, Owners   (public hearing) 

10. Ordinance Number 2818 – Rezoning – 3771 And 3783 Fairhaven Drive; Lots 24, 25, 31 
And 32, Block 1, Glass Addition To New Merkle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills INST 
(Institutional District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Overton 
Investments, LLC, Owners   (public hearing) 

11. Ordinance Number 2819 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, 
Block 2, Coventry, 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner   (public hearing) 

12. Ordinance Number 2820 – Rezoning - 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry, 1st 
And 2nd Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential District) 
To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Barbara French, Owner   
(public hearing) 

13. Ordinance Number 2821 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 
1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan And Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2822 – Rezoning – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge 
Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Alan And Patricia 
Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 



15. Ordinance Number 2823 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 
2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason And Laura Sparks, Owners   (public hearing) 

16. Ordinance Number 2824 – Rezoning – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge 
Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Jason And Laura 
Sparks, Owners   (public hearing) 

New Business 

17. Resolution Number 5120 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 
Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 
Surplus Property    

18. Resolution Number 5121 – A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Slice LLC 
D/B/A Wing Ding 2019; Jeffrey Saied Bajaleih, Jason Brian Bajalieh, Christopher Saleh 
Bajaheih, Executives For A Special Event At 1032 Montgomery Highway    (public 

hearing) 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

19. Resolution Number 5122 – A Resolution Establishing A Sidewalk Construction Policy 
For The Installation Of Public Sidewalks With Financial Assistance From Area Residents   
(public hearing) 

20. Ordinance Number 2828 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Kadco, LLC For Construction Of Sidewalks 
On Poe Drive   (public hearing)  

21. Citizen Comments      
22. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
January 14, 2019 

Page 1 
 

 CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

JANUARY 14, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  Mayor Curry called the meeting to 
order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  

Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 

      Paul Head, Councilor 
      George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 
      Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      George Sawaya, Asst. Finance Director 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
      Cinnamon McCulley, Communication Specialist 
 

David Phillips, Vestavia Hills Chaplin, led the invocation followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION  
 

 Mr. Pierce stated he was going to attend the retreat for new members of the Chamber of 
Commerce to be held Thursday at the Vestavia Country Club. 

 Mr. Pierce welcomed Ford Pierce, his grandson, who was elected Mayor of his 4th grade 
class.  He stated the responsibilities that position entails and what Ford will be doing 
during his tenure. 

 Fire Chief Marvin Green recognized members of the new 2019 Vestavia Hills Leadership 
class members who were in attendance. 

 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
January 14, 2019 

Page 2 
 

PROCLAMATION – ALABAMA BICENTENNIAL 
 
 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating 2019 as “Alabama Bicentennial.”  Mr. 
Downes read the proclamation aloud and presented it to Julie Harper, Brian Davis and Melanie 
Perry, members of the Bicentennial Committee.  The Mayor stated that the City will join the State 
of Alabama in celebration of Her 200th birthday by hosting several events throughout the City 
during the year to celebrate and educate everyone about the history of Alabama and the City of 
Vestavia Hills. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes introduced Brian Davis, Public Services Director. 
o Mr. Davis officially thanked Ms. Melanie Perry for her leadership and presented 

her a Certificate of Recognition for said event.  He stated that even though weather 
prevented the event, her contributions should not go recognized. 

 Mr. Downes stated that the regular work session on the 21st of January has been cancelled 
in lieu of a 2-day planning session on February 4 and 5 in the Executive Conference Room.  
He stated an agenda will be forthcoming.   

 Every 2 years a community survey is completed.  This year, between surveys, the City 
Manager stated that they will be coming out with a Vestavia Listens topic to continue to 
gain community insight. 

 Mr. Downes announced that the closing of a portion of Wald Park to be developed as 
Baumhowers Victory Grille is scheduled for the last week in January and then the owner 
will be set to begin construction immediately. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mayor Curry announced that on January 22 at Rosewood Hall in Homewood, the Freedom 
from Addiction Coalition will meet and provide free breakfast along with informative 
speakers, etc.  This will be followed up with a subsequent meeting here in Vestavia Hills 
on April 4.  

 Mr. Weaver stated that the Planning and Zoning Commission met last Thursday with a 3-
hour meeting which included a rezoning request for Chick Fil A in Cahaba Heights will 
be coming soon. 

 Mr. Head announced that the Park and Recreation board will meet beginning at 7 AM 
tomorrow in the Executive Conference Room. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending November 2018. He read and 
explained the report balances. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
January 14, 2019 

Page 3 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of the following meeting was presented for approval:  December 10, 2018 
(Regular Meeting), December 17, 2018 (Work Session) and December 17, 2018 (Regular 
Meeting). 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the December 10, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
         Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the December 17, 2018 

(Work Session) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second by 
Mr. Head.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
         Motion carried. 
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the December 17, 2018 

(Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was by Mr. Weaver and second 
by Mr. Head.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
         Motion carried. 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5119 
 

Resolution Number 5119 - A Resolution Approving An Alcohol License For Rayburn 
Hospitality Vestavia Hills LLC D/B/A Mugshots Grill And Bar Vestavia Hills 
For A 020-Restaurant Retail Liquor License; 1919 Kentucky Avenue, Suite 
101; Derrick Clifton Rayburn, Executive   (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5119 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Pierce. 
 
 The Mayor explained that this Resolution approves an alcohol license for the new owner 
of Mugshots. 
 



City Council Minutes 
January 14, 2019 

Page 4 
 

 
 Derrick Rayburn, Mugshots, stated he purchased the business last year and the reason for 
this request is because of the change of ownership. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked about training of employees. 
 
 Mr. Rayburn stated that they participate in the Responsible Vendor program. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. 
   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
         Motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2825 
 

Ordinance Number 2825 – An Ordinance Adopting And Enacting Supplement 3 For The 
Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances, Republished 2013 Providing For The 
Repeal Of Certain Ordinances Not Included Therein And Providing For A 
Penalty For The Violation There; And Providing When Such Supplements 
And This Ordinance Shall Become Effective 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2825 was by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. 

Head. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this Ordinance codifies our most recent Ordinances into the 
City’s Code of Ordinances published in 2013 and already incorporated Supplements 1 and 2.  This 
latest is Supplement 3. 
 
 There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. 
   Mr. Head – yes   Mr. Pierce – yes 
   Mr. Weaver – yes   Mayor Curry – yes 
         Motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following resolutions and/or ordinances will be presented at a 
public hearing at the Council’s next regular meeting on January 28 2019, at 6:00 PM. 

 Ordinance Number 2817 – Rezoning – 3791 Poe Drive; That Part Of Lot 1, Overton 
Village Resurvey Which Lies In The Vestavia Hills Corporate Limits; Rezone From 



City Council Minutes 
January 14, 2019 

Page 5 
 

Vestavia Hills B-2 (General Business District) To VH R-9 (Planned Residential District); 
Overton Condos, LLC, Mark Perlman, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2818 – Rezoning – 3771 And 3783 Fairhaven Drive; Lots 24, 25, 31 
And 32, Block 1, Glass Addition To New Merkle; Rezone From Vestavia Hills INST 
(Institutional District) To Vestavia Hills R-9 (Planned Residential District); Overton 
Investments, LLC, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2819 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, 
Block 2, Coventry, 1st And 2nd Sector; Barbara French, Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2820 – Rezoning - 3421 Coventry Drive; Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry, 
1st And 2nd Sector; Rezone From Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Barbara French, 
Owner   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2821 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 
1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Alan And Patricia Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2822 – Rezoning – 3531 Valley Circle; Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge 
Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Alan And Patricia 
Foster, Owners   (public hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2823 – Annexation – 90-Day Final – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, 
Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; Jason And Laura Sparks, Owners   (public 
hearing) 

 Ordinance Number 2824 – Rezoning – 2532 Skyland Drive; Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge 
Estates, 2nd Add; Rezone from Jefferson County R-1 (Medium Density Residential 
District) To Vestavia Hills R-2 (Medium Density Residential District); Jason And Laura 
Sparks, Owners   (public hearing) 

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 
 None. 
 
 
 At 6:31 PM, Mr. Weaver made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:26 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2817 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills B-2 (general 

business district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3791 Poe Drive;  
That Part of Lot 1, Overton Village Resurvey  

which lies in Vestavia Hills Corporate Limits; 
Overton Condos, LLC, Marc Perlman, Owner(s) 

 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2817 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2817 
Page 3 

 
 
 

!.2 71 $ 'i1 

!.!. ~ :l !.,I_ .. 
~ 5 1441" 

CATHERS 
e ~ 

:.!. q ~ RES 

.. ... 
OVERTON e 

l"l I>CT ...... , ) .. ..... , ... ., 
1: 19 :.• 3 
~ a; 1 . 

~ 

~ 

'l 
... , 

g w 
.!! a ~ 

4 

s .... ... 
0 

.. I a 17 ~ :s ! 5 
Q. 

~ l(. 3 . 

7 

" ~ . 

... 
~ ------t="- ::.__] 

ROAD 

.#).,,, 

~ 

8 

. ~~ 

.!!! ., .. 
3RO ~ADDITION 

~ ~ !Q,a 

ill. !Q. 
~ II ..... , ..... I 

l 
OWMBIA COTIAG£ SURVE'Ii .. , ...... 1 

l.! 12J. ~ 

-· ; 
5 ... s 
~8 IS 2 

~ \ -, 8l e 
! I . ' .... 

~ . ' -""''' 
~ 7 t 

tu• 

~ 

~ 1-

:J ~ ... ::::i 

~ ... 
a: 

(,) ~ 0 

"' 
~ u NEVI MEFIIClE 

8! ~ IW'TIST CHIJACH 
T 

PAOTr&TAN T IJ'ISCOI'AI 
CHUf\CH IN DIOCESE 0~ 
At.A!AMA 

/ 

I' 
/ 

n \ICh'n'\-"t •••• • •• 



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date:     DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-55

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3791 Poe Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Marc Perlman with Overton Condos, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3791 Poe Drive from B-2
to R-9. The applicant would like to construct a townhouse development, building 5 
townhomes on the property as a companion piece to a Mountain Brook Condo project 
to the rear. Both projects would share a drive, allowing access to both Poe and 
Fairhaven Drives. Proposed setbacks are Front- 12’, rear- 20’, Sides- 0’. There is an 
11.95’ separation between townhomes and adjacent property to the south. All current 
easements will remain.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.   

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3791 Poe Drive
from Vestavia Hills B-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9. Second was by Ms. Cobb. Motion was carried on 
a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



2

Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2817



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2818 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY VESTAVIA HILLS INST TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-9 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills INST (institutional 

district) to Vestavia Hills R-9 (planned residential district):  

3771 and 3783 Fairhaven Drive 
Lots 24, 25, 31 and 32, Block 1, Glass Addition to New Merkle 

Overton Investments, LLC, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2818 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2818 
Page 3 

 



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018

CASE: P-1218-53

REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9

ADDRESS/LOCATION: 3771 & 3783 Fairhaven Drive

APPLICANT/OWNER: Overton Investments, LLC

GENERAL DISCUSSION: Applicant is seeking to rezone 3771 and 3783 Fairhaven
Drive from INST to R-9. The applicant would like to build 3 new townhomes on
3771 Fairhaven Drive and also build 4 luxury townhomes on 3783 Fairhaven Drive.
The setbacks for both properties would be 30’ in the front, 25’ in the rear and 5’ on
the sides. All current easements will remain and the property would be re-platted at
the conclusion of zoning.

CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The Community Plan call for
Institutional Uses for these two sites, however, this was written when the assisted care
facility owned the lots.

STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning /
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application,
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no
issues with this request.

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues
with this request.

MOTION Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3771 & 3783 
Fairhaven Drive from Vestavia Hills INST to Vestavia Hills R-9. Second was by Mr. House.
Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Mr. Goodwin – yes Mr. Gilchrist – yes
Mr. Romeo – yes Ms. Cobb – yes
Mr. House – yes Mrs. Barnes – yes
Motion carried.

Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



E
xh

ib
it 

- O
rd

in
an

ce
 2

81
8



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Exhibit - Ordinance 2818



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2819 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3421 Coventry Drive, 
Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector 

Barbara French, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2819 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2819 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3421 Coventry Drive

Barbara French

8.29.18

$360,000

3421 Coventry Drive
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819

16

18



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3421 Coventry Drive

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

3421 Coventry Drive
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



 
Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2819



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2820 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

3421 Coventry Drive 
Lot 6, Block 2, Coventry 1st and 2nd Sector; 

Barbara French, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2820 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2820 
Page 3 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-50 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3421 Coventry Drive 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Barbara C. French 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2797. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3421 Coventry 
Drive from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2820



E
xh

ib
it 

- 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 2
82

0



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2821 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

3531 Valley Circle 
Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 

Alan and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2821 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 



Ordinance Number 2821 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

3531 Valley Circle

Alan and Patricia Foster

8.29.18

$205,700

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

3531 Valley Circle

0 children
not applicable

Kimberly B. Cook
Acting Chair

Nothing significant

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2821



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2822 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

3531 Valley Circle 
Lot 6, Block 1, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; 

Alan and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2822 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2822 
Page 3 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-51 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3531 Valley Circle 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Alan & Patricia Foster 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2798. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 3531 Valley 
Circle from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2822



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2822



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2823 
 
 ANNEXING CERTAIN TERRITORY TO THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA 
HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, on the 8th day of October, 2018, a petition was presented to the City 

Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, proposing the annexation of certain 

property to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, under the provisions of Act 32 of the 

Special Session on the Alabama Legislature of 1964; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, at the time and place 

of its regular meeting on said date, made a determination that the matters contained in the 

Petition were true and that it was in the public interest that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the following property which was described in said petition be annexed to 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 

2532 Skyland Drive 
Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add 

Jason and Laura Sparks, Owner(s) 
 
 2.  That this Annexation shall become effective upon the adoption and approval of 

this Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of law, after which the heretofore 

described property shall become a part of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 3.  That the City Clerk be and is hereby directed to publish this Ordinance in 

accordance with the requirements of the law and to file a copy hereof with the Probate 

Judge of Jefferson County, Alabama. 



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 2 

 

 ADOPTING and APPROVED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2823 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2823 
Page 3 

 

 



 
Annexation Committee Petition Review 

 
Property: ________________________________________________________ 
 
Owners:  ________________________________________________________ 

   
Date: _______________________ 
 
1. The property in question is contiguous to the city limits. 

Yes _______    No ________  Comments:___________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________. 

 
2. The land use of the petitioned property is compatible with land use in the area. 

Yes ________    No ________  Comments: __________________________ 
______________________________________________________________ 

 
3. The property being petitioned is noted in the September 2006 Annexation Policy 

Task Force Report as an area of interest to the city for annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
4. Streets and drainage structures are in substantial compliance with city regulations 

and building codes, and in good condition at the time of the annexation. 
Yes _______    No ________  Comments _____________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
5. Individual household has a Jefferson or Shelby County Tax Assessor minimum 

market value of __________________.  Meets city criteria: Yes ____  No ____ 
Comment:_______________________________________________________ 

 
6. This street has fewer than 100% of the individual properties within the limits of 

the city 
 Yes _______    No _______   

Number of total homes ___________  Number in city ____________________  
 
7. Fire dues pursuant to Act #604 of the State of Alabama, and any other 

assessments on the property shall be the responsibility of the property owner, and 
their payment proven to the city. 

 Agreed to by petitioner:  Yes _______  No _______  Comment_______________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

2532 Skyland Drive

Jason Sparks

8.29.18

See Engineering Report.

$204,600
Though this property falls short of the City’s median property value, similar, 
adjacent properties have sold recently in the median range.

13 5

2532 Skyland Drive

$211,100



Property: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
8. A non-refundable administrative fee of $100 has been paid to the city.  

Furthermore, voluntary contributions, including an application fee, of 
$___________ will be paid to offset costs associated with the annexation. 

 Yes _______    No _______  Comment _________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
9. Property is free and clear of hazardous waste, debris and materials. 
 Yes _______  No _______   Comment __________________________________ 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
 
10. Are there any concerns from city departments? 
 Yes  _______  No _______  Comments: _________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________
 __________________________________________________________________ 

 
      11. Information on children:  Number in family _____________; Plan to enroll in VH 
 schools  Yes _______  No _________   Comments: ________________________ 
 __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
     Other Comments: ______________________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
George Pierce 
Chairman 

2532 Skyland Drive

See Engineering department report of concerns regarding storm drain pipe. City Engineer stated Jefferson County is 
willing to partner with the City to replace the public pipe. Property owner acknowledged he was aware the private pipe 
would need to be repaired at the same time as the public pipe repair. The City Engineer said this is not currently causing a 
problem, but would need to be fixed. Committee recommends the pipe repair would be a contingency of the annexation.

1 child

Kimberly Cook, Acting Chairman

2532 Skyland Drive



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Christopher Brady
Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 12:08 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings; George Pierce
Cc: Jeff Downes
Subject: RE: Annexation Committee Agenda
Attachments: 2532 Skyland Drive_survey markup.pdf; skyland_pics.pdf

Fyi 
I wanted to provide an update on 2532 Skyland… 
 
I met Wed, 8/22, with Mr. Sparks to discuss drainage pipe concerns on his property and within the roadway at the front 
of this property.  I have also initiated discussions with Jefferson County, but have not yet received input from their 
review. 
 
The attached sketch and pictures provide an overview of the rusted drainage pipe.  There is approximately 100 LF of 30” 
pipe on his property that has substantially deteriorated; the bottom of the pipe is mostly rusted away.  The pipe within 
the roadway right‐of‐way, approximately 60 LF of 30” pipe, and another 35 LF of 15”, has little to no bottom remaining.  
 
There are no surface concerns evident yet; no sinkholes or subsidence in the roadway.  Mr. Sparks’ driveway has settling 
and cracking, but no visible hazard or immediate concerns. 
 
The property across the street, as well as numerous neighboring properties, are already within the City, so there is pre‐
existing City maintenance in this area.  However, this was not a previously identified pipe replacement project. 
 
Mr.Sparks’ family has owned the property for 10+ years and claims to have not noted any issues in past.  His mom also 
met with us on site and provided additional background on the property and noting improvements they have done to 
the property since owning. 
 
Mr. Sparks stated a willingness to consider investing in improvements, and is awaiting additional guidance from the City 
and/or County.  He intends to attend the Committee meeting on 29th and address this concern in any discussion as 
needed. 
 

 
 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Department of Public Services 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 
City of Vestavia Hills 

   
 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



 

 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2823



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2824 
  

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM JEFFERSON 
COUNTY R-1 TO VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 
 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Jefferson County R-1 (medium 

density residential district) to Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential district):  

2532 Skyland Drive 
Lot 8, Block 2, Dolly Ridge Estates, 2nd Add; 

Jason and Laura Sparks, Owner(s) 
 
 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 2 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2824 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 28th day of January, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2019. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2824 
Page 3 

 
 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date: DECEMBER 13, 2018 
 

• CASE: P-1218-52 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2 
 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  2532 Skyland Drive 
 

• APPLICANT/OWNER: Jason Sparks 
 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION: Property was annexed overnight by City Council on 
10/8/18 with the passage of Ordinance 2799. Applicant is requesting the compatible 
rezoning. 

 
• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation 

 
2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

 
4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 

with this request. 
 
 
MOTION  Mr. Gilchrist made a motion to recommend rezoning approval for 2532 Skyland 
Drive from Jefferson County R-1 to Vestavia Hills R-2. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was 
carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Gilchrist – yes           
Mr. Romeo – yes    Ms. Cobb – yes 
Mr. House – yes    Mrs. Barnes – yes 
Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 

 

Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2824



E
xh

ib
it 

- 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 N
o.

 2
82

4



Resolution Number 5120 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5120 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5120 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 28th day of 

January, 2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5120



 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5121 
 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING ALCOHOL LICENSE 

FOR SLICE LLC D/B/A WING DING 2019; JEFFREY 
SAIED BAJALIEH, JASON BRIAN BAJALIEH, 
CHRISTOPHER SALEH BAJAHIEH, EXECUTIVES 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, approves the 

alcohol license for SLICE LLC d/b/a Wing Ding 2019, located at 1032 Montgomery 

Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, for the on-premise sale of 140 - Special Events Retail; 

Jeffrey Saied Bajalieh, Jason Brian Bajalieh, Christopher Saleh Bajahieh, executives. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 28th day of January, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 









Resolution Number 5120 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5122 
 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION 
POLICY FOR THE INSTALLATION OF PUBLIC SIDEWALKS WITH 
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FROM AREA RESIDENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills has established a Master Sidewalk Plan detailing 

locations of present and predetermined locations for public sidewalks; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the City’s Master Sidewalk Plan is marked as Exhibit A attached 

to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 5122 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, residents have expressed interest in installation of sidewalks in areas outside 

of the City’s Master Sidewalk Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has drafted a Sidewalk Construction Policy to be used as 

a guide for evaluation of proposed sidewalks following a request made by a neighborhood or a 

collection of residents; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to establish 

the recommended Sidewalk Construction Policy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. A Sidewalk Construction Policy is hereby established as follows:  In the event a 

neighborhood or collection of residents’ request installation of a sidewalk not included in 

the Master Sidewalk Plan, then the City Council may elect to authorize the construction of 

sections of requested sidewalks upon the consideration of the following factors: 

a. Residents will contribute funds toward the design and construction of the requested 

section of sidewalk at an amount adequate to offset costs after City Council 

consideration of available funds and other priorities. 

b. The proposed section of sidewalk will connect existing links of sidewalks. 

c. The proposed sidewalk will connect to City-owned property, parks, merchant areas, 

or schools. 

d. The proposed sidewalk is warranted for public safety considerations. 

2. This Resolution Number 5122 will become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

 



Resolution Number 5120 
Page 2 

 
 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2828 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2828 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH KADCO, LLC 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS ON POE DRIVE 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills is desirous to install public sidewalks along Poe 

Drive; and 

 WHEREAS, Kadco, LLC has offered to partner with the City in the installation of 

sidewalks along Poe Drive; and 

 WHEREAS, a contract has been drafted authorizing Kadco, LLC to construct 1,200 linear 

feet of public sidewalks along the rights-of-way of Poe Drive at a cost estimated at One Hundred, 

Thirty Thousand, Four Hundred and Thirty Eight Dollars ($130,438.00) with the City paying the 

sum of Forty-nine Thousand, Nine Hundred Ninety-nine and 99/100 Dollars ($49,999.99) of the 

cost for the construction of the sidewalk and Kadco, LLC paying any and all other costs exceeding 

that amount.; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said Contract is marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 2828 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept said 

offer from Kadco and authorize the Mayor and City Manager to execute and deliver the agreement 

detailed in Exhibit A. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver the agreement 

detailed in Exhibit A attached; and 

2. This Ordinance Number 2828 shall become effective immediately following approval, 

adoption and posting as required by Alabama law. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of February, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 



Ordinance Number 2828 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2828


	Agenda 0128
	Minutes 0114
	Ordinance 2817
	Ordinance 2818
	Ordinance 2819
	Ordinance 2820
	Ordinance 2821
	Ordinance 2822
	Ordinance 2823
	Ordinance 2824
	Resolution 5120
	Resolution 5121
	Resolution 5122
	Ordinance 2828



